Auburn, Kentucky

Interim Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project
Contracts 1, 2, and 3

ADDENDUM No. 1
January 28, 2026

This ADDENDUM to plans, specifications and bidding documents for the subject project
modifies the referenced items to the extent described herein. Items not modified by this
ADDENDUM remain unchanged and in full effect.

Bidders are required to acknowledge receipt of this ADDENDUM on the Bid Form.

Pre-Bid Meeting

No pre-bid meeting will be held.

Bid Opening

The date and time of the bid opening is changed to Tuesday, February 10, 2026 at 11:00
am CST. The location of the bid opening (Guthrie City Hall) remains the same.

Blower Sizing

Change the minimum required output volume for each blower to 400 SCFM at 7.0 PSIG.

Blower Electrical Supply

Reference drawing UE-001 Keynote 3 — Blower Motors shall be 20 HP instead of 10 HP.
Contractor shall provide 60 amp 3 phase circuit and associated breakers, conduit and
wiring to each blower (4#6, #10 GRD., 1 inch conduit).

Air Piping
Schedule 10 stainless steel piping may be used in lieu of carbon steel for air piping.

Sludge and Scum Discharge

Waste sludge and clarifier scum are to be discharged to new gravity drain piping
connecting to the existing plant sludge digester as shown on the Drawings.
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Plant Coating System

A two-component phenalkamine epoxy coating system applied in accordance with
coating manufacturer’s instructions may be used in lieu of the coal tar epoxy coating
system specified.

Welding Specification

Welding of plant components shall comply with AWS D1.1, latest edition.

Plant Basin Base Material

Plant specifications indicate a steel plate bottom for all basins. A flat steel plate base with
grouted conical bottom is acceptable for the clarifier. Bidders wishing to offer a plant
structure requiring embedments in the concrete support slab and utilizing the concrete as
the bottom of basins may do so as an alternate bid in the space provided in the revised
bid form.

Revised Bid Form

Replace the bid form with the revised bid form included in this addendum.

Discharge Permit

The KPDES discharge permit requirements are provided for reference. The plant supplied
shall be designed to produce effluent meeting the requirements of this permit.

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 TEXT
This addendum consists of 2 pages of text and 41 pages of attachments.
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BID FORM
(Addendum No. 1)

Project Identification: ~ City of Guthrie

Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project

Contract Identification: Interim Plant Expansion Project

ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT

1.01 This Bid is Submitted to: City of Guthrie

PO Box 125
Guthrie, Kentucky 42234

1.02  The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with
Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the
Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in the Bid and in accordance with the other
terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation
those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 90 days
after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of
Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A

Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items
identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

Addendum No. Dated
Addendum No. Dated
Addendum No. Dated

Bidder has visited the Point of Destination and site where the Goods or Special Services will be
provided and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the observable local conditions that may affect
cost, progress, or the furnishing of Goods and Special Services, if required to do so by the Bidding
Documents, or if, in Bidder’s judgment, any local condition may affect cost, progress, or the furnishing
of Goods and Special Services

Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, performance of the Work.

Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or
adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface
structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect
to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous
Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to
contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits
to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
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Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost,
progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder's safety precautions and
programs.

Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, that
no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the
determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and within the times required, and
in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that
relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder
has discovered in the Bidding Documents and confirms that the written resolution thereof by Engineer
is acceptable to Bidder.

The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and
conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has
complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the Bid and all prices in the
Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents.

The Bidder shall be aware of the current KRS 139.480(34) regarding the tax exemption for
building materials, fixtures, and supplies purchased by a construction contractor for a sewer or
water project with a governmental agency. No sales tax shall be included in the stated bid
prices. The awarded contractor will be required to complete a Certificate of Exemption (see
Appendix) with each vendor on the project.

ARTICLE 4 - BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.01 Bidder certifies that:

A

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity
and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association,
organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid;
Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the
Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “Corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to
influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2.  “Fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the
bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive
levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

3.  “Collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or
without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non-
competitive levels; and

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
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4. “Coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their
property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the e execution of the
Contract.

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF BID

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

5.04

Bidders may place bids for any or all of the three contracts. If bidding a contract, write in the bid price in
the space provided. If not bidding a contract, leave the corresponding space blank, or write “no bid” in the
corresponding space.

Bidder will compete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following LUMP SUM
price:

Contract Description Bid Price

LUMP SUM Bid price for all work involved in providing and
1 installing a packaged wastewater treatment system as $
specified, complete and in service.

LUMP SUM Bid price for all work involved in providing and
installing a packaged wastewater treatment system as

1a specified, complete and in service, except for using $
embedded steel in the base slab and concrete basin
bottoms.

2 LUMP SUM bid price for all work involved in clearing and $
grubbing the new plant site as specified.

3 LUMP SUM bid price for chain link fencing, gates and $

appurtenances as specified.

Bid items 1 or 1a includes providing a packaged interim wastewater treatment plant system manufactured

by:

Bids for each contract will be evaluated individually. The Owner may award one or multiple contracts, or
may reject any or all bids.

Bidder acknowledges that the Lump Sum Bid Price includes all labor, materials, equipment, supplies,
superintendence, overhead, profit, and all other items necessary for full completion of the Work.

ARTICLE 6 — TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01

6.02

Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final payment
in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or within the number
of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
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ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID
7.01 The following documents are attached to and made a condition of the Bid:

A. Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EJCDC No. C-430) or Certified Check. Bid security is
required for Contract No. 1 only.

B. Statement of Experience.

ARTICLE 8 — DEFINED TERMS

8.01  The terms used in this Bid with the initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in the Instructions to
Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

ARTICLE 9 — BID SUBMITTAL

9.01  This Bid submitted by:

Submitted by:

Signature Business
Printed or Typed Name Bidder's Business Address
Title City, State, Zip Code
Employer’s Tax ID No. Business Phone No. Business Fax No.
Business Email Address Cell Phone No. Other Contact No.
9.02  Bid submitted on , 2026.

Seal (if required)

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
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— KPDES

KENTUCKY POLLUTANT
DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
SYSTEM

M PERMIT

AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE
KENTUCKY POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

PERMIT NO.: KY0063649
AGENCY INTEREST NO.: 4018

Pursuant to Authority in KRS 224,

City of Guthrie
P.O. Box 125
Guthrie, Kentucky, 42234

is authorized to discharge from a facility located at

Guthrie Wastewater Treatment Plant
251 Cypress Lane
Guthrie, Todd County, Kentucky

to receiving waters named
UT to Spring Creek

in accordance with effluent limitations, monitoring requirements and other conditions set forth in this
permit.

This permit shall become effective on

This permit and the authorization to discharge shall expire at midnight,

Date Signed:

Sarah C. Marshall, Director
Division of Water

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water, 300 Sower Blvd, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Printed on Recycled Paper
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THIS KPDES PERMIT CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS.

1. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS ......cccceettiermemmmmemeeeeneemeeeememeeeeeeeeeeenns 5
1.1. Compliance Monitoring Locations (OULalls)........cccuueeeeiiiieiiiiiieccee et 5
1.2. Effluent Limitations and Monitoring REQUIr€MENTS..........eeieiuiiiiiiiiee e e 5
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1.4. Pretreatment Program Monitoring REQUIrEMENTS .......coeeiiiiiiii e 9
1.5. Application Monitoring for Outfalls: 001 and O0L1A .........ooeiii i i et 10
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3.5. Proper Operation and MaiNtENANCE ......cccccuiieiiiieeeciieeiieree e et te e etbe e e e sar e e e sareeessaaeeessareeesessaeee s 20
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3,11, SigNATONY REQUITEMENT. ... ittt bbbt ettt bt bttt e baeaeebbeaeebaeesaeneeeesaens 21
3.12.  RePOIrtiNG REGUIFEIMENTS ..uuuuiiiiiiiiiittitit ettt te e eae b aeba e e eebbeeeebebeeaesbeeeeaeabeeseasesneeees 22
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4. ADDITIONAL CATEGORICAL CONDITIONS......cccituiiruiieniireniiransirnessrrassiraessrassssrassssasssrasssssnssssans 27
5. WET TESTING REQUIREIMMENTS......ccuuiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiri e iresinsessssassseassssssssrensssesssssssssssnssnes 29
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5.3.  SEIIAl DIIULIONS ...t ettt et e sb e e st e e s be e s bt e e sb b e sabeesaee e saeeesareeeneeesnns 29
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SECTION 1

EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING
REQUIREMENTS



1. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

1.1. Compliance Monitoring Locations (Outfalls)

KPDES Permit KY0063649

Page 5

The following table lists the outfalls authorized by this permit, the location and description of each, and the DOW assigned KPDES outfall number:

TABLE 1.
Outfall . . - ——
No Outfall Type Latitude (N) | Longitude (W) Receiving Water Description of Outfall
001 External 36.6429° 84.1891° UT to Spring Creek Mun|C|pa! Wéstewater from a Publicly Owned Treatment
Works which includes an Approved Pretreatment Program
001A External 36.6429° 84.1891° UT to Spring Creek Mun|C|pa! Wéstewater from a Publicly Owned Treatment
Works which includes an Approved Pretreatment Program

1.2. Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements

Beginning on the effective date and lasting through the term of this permit, discharges from Outfall 001 shall comply with the following effluent limitations.

These limits are for the existing 0.310 MGD WWTP.

TABLE 2.
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
Loadings (lb/day) Concentrations
Parameter Description I,\\A:e':t;;lz Mal?::l\:l _ Units Minimum I,\\A:e':t;;lz Mal?::l\:l _ Frequency Sample Type

Flow, Effluent (Reported as MGD) Report Report MGD N/A N/A N/A Continuous Recorder
Flow, Influent (Reported as MGD) Report Report MGD N/A N/A N/A Continuous Recorder
pH N/A N/A SU 6.0 N/A 9.0 1/Week Grab
CBODs?, Effluent 51.7 77.6 mg/| N/A 20 30! 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
CBODs?, Influent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report? 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
CBODs? Percent Removal* N/A N/A % 85 N/A N/A 1/Month Calculated*
TSS®, Effluent 77.6 116.3 mg/I N/A 30 451 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
TSS®, Influent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report? 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
TSS®, Percent Removal* N/A N/A % 85 N/A N/A 1/Month Calculated*
Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N)

May 1 — October 31 10.3 155 mg/| N/A 4.0 6.0 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?

November 1 — April 30 25.9 38.8 mg/| N/A 10 15 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
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TABLE 2.
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
Loadings (lb/day) Concentrations
Parameter Description 24:;::: Mal?(?,::‘:, _ Units Minimum 24:;::: Mal?(?,::‘:, _ Frequency Sample Type

Dissolved Oxygen N/A N/A mg/| 7.0 N/A N/A 1/Week Grab

E. coli® N/A N/A #/100 ml N/A 1307 2408 1/Week Grab

Total Nitrogen®, Effluent N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Nitrogen®, Influent N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Phosphorus, Effluent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Phosphorus, Influent N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Hardness (as mg/l CaCOs) N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report 1/Qtr. 24-Hr Composite3
Copper, total recoverable N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Qtr. 24-Hr Composite®
Chronic WET*® N/A N/A TUc N/A N/A 1.00 1/Qtr. (*)

IMaximum Weekly Average

2CBODs — Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand, 5-day

3A 24-hour composite is a sample collected using an automated sampler set to collect equal volume aliquots of at least 100 ml each every 15 minutes over a 24 hour
period. The sample must be maintained at between 0° C and 6° C at all times.

*Minimum Percent Removal is a monthly average calculated using the following equation: PercentRemovalz{(

Monthly Averagelnfluent- MontthAverageEfﬂuent)

Monthly Averagelnfluent

}xlOO

5TSS — Total Suspended Solids

8E. coli — Escherichia coli Bacteria

"Thirty (30) day Geometric Mean

8Seven (7) day Geometric Mean

%Total Nitrogen is the summation of the analytical results for Total Nitrates, Total Nitrites, and Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen

OWET — Whole Effluent Toxicity

"Two (2) discrete grab samples shall be collected 12 hours apart.
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Beginning when the Interim WWTP (0.403 MGD) construction is completed and then lasting through the term of this permit, discharges from Outfall 001A
shall comply with the following effluent limitations:

TABLE 3.
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
Loadings (Ib/day) Concentrations
Parameter Description I;ﬂ:;?gl: Mal?(?:‘yu _ Units Minimum I;ﬂ:;?gl: Mal?(?:‘yu _ Frequency Sample Type
Flow, Effluent (Reported as MGD) Report Report MGD N/A N/A N/A Continuous Recorder
Flow, Influent (Reported as MGD) Report Report MGD N/A N/A N/A Continuous Recorder
pH N/A N/A SuU 6.0 N/A 9.0 1/Week Grab
CBODs?, Effluent 33.6 50.4 mg/| N/A 10 15! 1/Week 24-Hr Composite®
CBODs?, Influent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report? 1/Week 24-Hr Composite®
CBODs? Percent Removal* N/A N/A % 85 N/A N/A 1/Month Calculated*
TSS®, Effluent 100.8 151.2 mg/| N/A 30 45! 1/Week 24-Hr Composite®
TSS®, Influent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report? 1/Week 24-Hr Composite®
TSS®, Percent Removal* N/A N/A % 85 N/A N/A 1/Month Calculated*
Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) 6.7 10.1 mg/| N/A 2.0 3.0 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Dissolved Oxygen N/A N/A mg/| 7.0 N/A N/A 1/Week Grab
E. coli® N/A N/A #/100 ml N/A 1307 2408 1/Week Grab
Total Nitrogen®, Effluent N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Nitrogen®, Influent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Phosphorus, Effluent N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Total Phosphorus, Influent N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Week 24-Hr Composite?
Hardness (as mg/l CaCOs) N/A N/A mg/| N/A Report Report 1/Qtr. 24-Hr Composite®
Copper, total recoverable N/A N/A mg/I N/A Report Report 1/Qtr. 24-Hr Composite?
Chronic WET?? N/A N/A TUc N/A N/A 1.00 1/Qtr. ()
IMaximum Weekly Average
2CBODs — Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand, 5-day
3A 24-hour composite is a sample collected using an automated sampler set to collect equal volume aliquots of at least 100 ml each every 15 minutes over a 24 hour
period. The sample must be maintained between 0° C and 6° C at all times.
4Minimum Percent Removal is a monthly average calculated using the following equation: Percent Removal = [(MomhlyAver;ge Influent - Monthly Average Effluent) x 100
onthly Average Influent




KPDES Permit KY0063649 Page 8

TABLE 3.
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
Loadings (lb/day) Concentrations
Parameter Description Monthly D?ily Units Minimum Monthly D?ily Frequency Sample Type
Average Maximum Average Maximum

5TSS — Total Suspended Solids

SE. coli — Escherichia coli Bacteria

"Thirty (30) day Geometric Mean

8Seven (7) day Geometric Mean

9Total Nitrogen is the summation of the analytical results for Total Nitrates, Total Nitrites, and Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen

SWET — Whole Effluent Toxicity

"Two (2) discrete grab samples shall be collected 12 hours apart.

Effluent limitation becomes effective on the first day of the 13th month after the effective date of the expansion. The reported value shall be calculated as the average loading
of the 12 months prior to the end of the monitoring period. The Permittee shall use NODI Code “9: Conditional monitoring — Not required for this period” for monitoring
periods prior to the effective date of the limit.

1.3. Standard Effluent Requirements

The discharges to waters of the Commonwealth shall not produce floating solids, visible foam or a visible sheen on the surface of the receiving waters.
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1.4. Pretreatment Program Monitoring Requirements

Beginning on the effective date and lasting through the term of this permit, discharges from Outfalls 001 and 001i shall comply with the following monitoring
requirements, and the results shall be reported on the pretreatment scan outfall limit set designator 001P and 001iP.

TABLE 4.
PRETREATMENT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
Conce.ntrati.ons Monitoring
Parameter Description (Specify Units) .
Monthly DE."IV Location Frequency Sample Type
Average Maximum

Arsenic, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Cadmium, Total Recoverable | Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite?
Chloride (As Cl) Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Chromium, Hexavalent Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually Grab
Ezzvm;arzi;—mal Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) | Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite?
Copper, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Eﬁ:rlicrlgt::c:g; (amenable to Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually Grab

Iron, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Lead, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite?
Mercury, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually Grab
Nickel, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Oil & Grease Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually Grab
Phenolics, Total Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually Grab
Phosphorus, Total Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Selenium, Total Recoverable | Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Silver, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
Zinc, Total Recoverable Report (mg/l) | Report (mg/l) Influent & Effluent Annually 24-Hr Composite!
A 24-hour composite is a sample collected using an automated sampler set to collect equal volume aliquots of at least 100 ml each
every 15 minutes over a 24 hour period. The sample must be maintained at between 0° C and 6° C at all times.
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1.5. Application Monitoring for Outfalls: 001 and 001A

POTWs are required to complete application Form A which requires a minimum of three (3) samples to be collected and analyzed. To ensure that sufficient samples
are collected and analyzed, DOW has imposed minimum annual sampling during years two (2) through four (4) of the permit term, for those parameters required
to be analyzed and reported on the application (See table below). Of the three (3) samples, two (2) shall be taken no closer than four (4) months together and no
greater than eight (8) months apart. The results of the application monitoring shall be submitted on an annual Discharge Monitoring Repot (DMR) and summarized
on the renewal application. The permittee shall report NODI Code 9: “Conditional Monitoring — Not Required for this period” on the DMR for years 1 and 5 of the permit.

TABLE 5.
RENEWAL APPLICATION MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
. . Concentrations
Parameter Description Units P Maximum Frequency Sample Type
Temperature (May 1- October 31) °F Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Temperature (November 1- April 30) °F Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) mg/I Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Nitrate Plus Nitrite Nitrogen mg/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Oil & Grease mg/| Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Phosphorus (Total) mg/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) mg/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Antimony, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Arsenic, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Beryllium, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
Cadmium, Total Recoverable ug/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Chromium, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Chloride ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
Copper, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Lead, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Mercury, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Nickel, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Selenium, Total Recoverable pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Silver, Total Recoverable pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Thallium, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Zinc, Total Recoverable ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Cyanide, Free (amenable to chlorination) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Phenolic Compounds, Total ug/! Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Hardness, Total (as CaCO3) mg/I Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Acrolein ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
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Acrylonitrile ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Benzene pg/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Bromoform ug/! Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Carbon tetrachloride ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Chlorobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Chlorodibromomethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Chloroethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
2-Chloroethylvinyl ether (mixed) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Chloroform ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Dichlorobromomethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,1-Dichloroethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,2-Dichloroethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ug/! Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,1-Dichloroethylene pg/ Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,2-Dichloropropane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,3-Dichloropropylene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Ethylbenzene (34371) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Methyl bromide (Bromomethane) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Methyl chloride (Chloromethane) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Methylene chloride ug/ Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Tetrachloroethylene ug/! Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Toluene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,1,1-Trichloroethane ug/! Report Report 3/5 years Grab
1,1,2-Trichloroethane pg/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Trichloroethylene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
Vinyl chloride ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab
p-Chloro-m-cresol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2-Chlorophenol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,4-Dichlorophenol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,4-Dimethylphenol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
4,6-Dinitro-o-cresol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,4-Dinitrophenol pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2-Nitrophenol pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
4-Nitrophenol pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Pentachlorophenol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
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Phenol ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,4,6-Trichlorophenol ug/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Acenaphthene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Acenaphthylene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Anthracene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Benzidine ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Benzo(a)Anthracene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
3,4-Benzofluoranthene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Benzo(ghi) perylene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Benzo(k)fluoranthene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Bis(2-chloroethoxy) methane ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Bis(2-chloroisopropyl) ether ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Bis(2-ethylhexyl) phthalate ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
4-Bromophenyl phenyl ether ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
Butyl benzyl phthalate ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
2-Chloronaphthalene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
4-Chlorophenyl phenyl ether ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite!
Chrysene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Di-n-butyl phthalate pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Dibenzo(a,h)Anthracene ug/! Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
1,2-Dichlorobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years Grab

3,3'-Dichlorobenzidine ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Diethyl phthalate ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Dimethyl phthalate ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,4-Dinitrotoluene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
2,6-Dinitrotoluene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Fluoranthene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Fluorene pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Hexachlorobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Hexachlorobutadiene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Hexachlorocyclo-pentadiene ug/| Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
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Hexachloroethane pg/! Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene ug/! Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Isophorone ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Naphthalene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Nitrobenzene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
N-Nitrosodi-N-propylamine ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
N-Nitrosodimethylamine (NDMA) ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Phenanthrene ug/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
Pyrene pg/l Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ug/! Report Report 3/5 years 24-Hr Composite?

1A 24-hour composite is a sample collected using an automated sampler set to collect equal volume aliquots of at least 100 ml each every 15 minutes over a 24 hour period.

The sample must be maintained at between 0° C and 6° C at all times.
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SECTION 2

COLLECTION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
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2. COLLECTION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
2.1, Prohibitions
The following prohibitions apply to the collection system and its users:

(1) There shall be no sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs);
(2) No user shall introduce any pollutant or pollutants that will cause pass through or interference with
the operation of the POTW and the collection system; or
(3) No user shall introduce any of the following pollutants:
a) Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard, including but not limited to, waste streams
with a closed cup flashpoint of less than 140 °F (60 °C);
b) Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage or have a pH less than 5.0 standard units
unless the POTW is designed to accommodate such pH levels;
c) Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts that would obstruct the flow to the POTW thus resulting in
interference;
d) Any pollutant released in a discharge at such a volume or strength as to cause interference in the
POTW;
e) Heat in such quantities that the temperature at the POTW treatment plant exceeds 104 °F (40 °C)
unless the POTW requests and the Approval Authority grants alternate temperature limits;
f) Petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or products of mineral oil origin in amounts that will
cause interference or pass-through.
g) Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within the POTW in a
quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems; and,
h) Any trucked or hauled waste except, at discharge points designated by the POTW.

All POTW's, in cases where pollutants contributed by user(s) of the collection system are likely to result in
reoccurring interference or pass-through, shall develop and enforce specific effluent limits for industrial
user(s), and all other users, as appropriate, which, together with appropriate changes in the POTW
treatment plant's facilities or operation, are necessary to ensure renewed and continued compliance with
the POTW's KPDES permit or sludge use or disposal practices. POTW’s with approved Pretreatment
Programs meet this requirement.

2.2, Capacity, Management, Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
2.2.1. Applicability

These conditions apply to all permittees with sewage infrastructure including the sewer system and
wastewater treatment plant.

2.2.2. Goals
The goals of a comprehensive CMOM Program are:

(1) To better manage, operate, and maintain the collection system;

(2) Investigate capacity constrained areas of the collection system;

(3) Proactively prevent or minimize SSOs;

(4) Respond to SSO events; and

(5) Proactively prevent or minimize the potential for the release of pollutants from ancillary activities
through plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from storage areas.
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To achieve these goals, the permittee shall complete a CMOM self-assessment using the checklist in the
“Guide for Evaluating Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Programs at Sanitary
Sewer Collection Systems,” EPA 305-B-05-002 to determine the scope of the CMOM program.

The guide is available at: http://www3.epa.gov/npdes/pubs/cmom guide for collection systems.pdf.
Upon completion of the checklist, the permittee shall develop a proposed plan of action to achieve the
goals of the CMOM program.

2.2.3. CMOM Plan of Action

At a minimum the plan of action shall include the following:

(1) Self-Assessment Summary (including recommended improvements and schedules);
(2) Collection System Diagram;

(3) Sewer Overflow Response Protocol (SORP);

(4) Best Management Practices (BMPs); and

(5) Any other constituent programs necessary to achieve the goals of the CMOM program

2.2.4. Collection System Diagram

The collection system diagram shall include the following:

(1)  Scale;

(2)  North arrow;

(3) Date the map was drafted and most recent revision;

(4) Street names;

(5) Surface waters;

(6) Service area boundaries;

(7) Manholes and other access points (including structure IDs);

(8) Sewer lines;

(9) Pump stations (including structure IDs);

(10) Wastewater treatment plants;

(11) Permitted discharge points or outfalls (including CSO outfalls);

(12) CSO regulators, for combined sewer systems; and

(13) Locations of recurring SSOs that occurred within the last five (5) years prior to the effective date of
this permit.

2.2.5. Sewer Overflow Response Protocol (SORP)

At a minimum the SORP shall include the following elements:

(1) An overflow response procedure including designated responders for the permittee, response times,
and cleanup methods;

(2) A public advisory procedure;

(3) Aregulatory agency notification procedure;

(4) A manhole and pump station inspection schedule;

(5) A procedure for addressing discharges to buildings caused by blockage, flow condition, or other
malfunction in sewer infrastructure owned or operationally controlled by the permittee; and

(6) Arequirement to include the structure ID for reported incidents.

2.2.6. Best Management Practices (BMPs)

BMPs are schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and other
management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in Section 2.1 of this permit. BMPs also
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include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage
or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage.

2.2.7. Implementation

Unless this is the first issuance of the permit, the permittee shall have completed implementation of the
CMOM program upon the effective date of this permit. A new facility receiving the first issuance of a
permit shall implement the CMOM program as soon as possible, but no later than one year from the
effective date of the permit or as specified in the schedule of compliance for this permit.

2.2.8. Documentation

The permittee shall maintain all applicable CMOM program documents at the facility and make them
available upon request to EEC personnel. Initial copies and modification thereof shall be sent to DOW
upon request.

2.2.9. Modification

The permittee shall amend CMOM Programs documentation whenever there is a change in the facility or
change in operation of the facility which materially affects the requirements specified in applicable
documents.

2.2.10. Modification for Ineffectiveness

If any of the CMOM programs prove to be ineffective in achieving the general objective of preventing and
eliminating SSOs and other unauthorized discharges, the permit, and/or specific CMOM programs shall
be subject to modification to address deficiencies. If at any time following the issuance of this permit any
of the CMOM programs are found to be inadequate pursuant to a state or federal site inspection or
review, affected CMOM program documents shall be modified to incorporate such changes necessary to
resolve concerns.

2.3. Pretreatment Program
The Pretreatment Program developed by the permittee was approved by the DOW on 9/9/87.

This permit incorporates the permittee’s approved pretreatment program, including the last modification
for Local Limits re-evaluation approved on 1/31/20, as enforceable conditions of the permit.

The permittee shall:

(1) Be responsible for the performance of all pretreatment requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 403;

(2) Implement and enforce its approved POTW pretreatment program;

(3) Enforce the requirements promulgated under Sections 307(b), 307(c), 307(d), and 402(b) of the Act;

(4) Cause industrial users subject to federal categorical standards to achieve compliance no later than
the date specified in those requirements or, in the case of a new industrial user, upon commencement
of the discharge; and

(5) Be subject to enforcement actions, penalties, fines, and other remedies by the Cabinet.

Per 40 CFR 403.5, the permittee has developed and implemented local limits. The permittee shall re-
evaluate local limits every 5 years or in response to change in industrial users, plant operations, plant
design, KPDES permit issuance or other considerations that may affect the prevention of pass through
and/or interference.

The pretreatment program and all of its elements are incorporated as enforceable conditions of the KPDES
permit. The Cabinet may initiate enforcement action against a POTW and against an industrial user for
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noncompliance with applicable standards and requirements as provided in KRS 224.16-050(1), 224.70-
110, and 224.73-120, and pursuant to the Clean Water Act.

During the 4™ quarter of the reporting year DOW shall provide the permittee with instructions on the
preparation and submittal of the Annual Pretreatment Program Report. The annual report shall be
prepared in accordance with these instructions and shall be in the proper format and include sufficient
detail such that DOW can ascertain compliance with the Pretreatment Program Requirements. The report
is to be submitted per requirements specified in the instructions no later than March 1° of the following
calendar year. An annual report that is not in the proper format, that does not include all the necessary
elements, that does not include sufficient detail, or that is received after March 1% is incomplete and is a
violation of the KPDES permit unless DOW has granted an extension.

Influent, effluent and sludge monitoring of the permittee’s WWTP(s) is a requirement of the permittee’s
pretreatment program. The results shall be reported on the permittee’s Annual Pretreatment Program
Report even if required to be reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report to meet other requirements in
this permit. Reporting sludge information on the Annual Pretreatment Program Report does not relieve
the permittee of sludge reporting requirements for other regulatory programs.
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SECTION 3

STANDARD CONDITIONS
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3. STANDARD CONDITIONS
The following conditions apply to all KPDES permits.
3.1. Duty to Comply

The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a
violation of KRS Chapter 224 and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation
and reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit renewal application. Any person who violates
applicable statutes or who fails to perform any duty imposed, or who violates any determination, permit,
administrative regulation, or order of the Cabinet promulgated pursuant thereto shall be liable for a civil
penalty as provided at KRS 224.99.010.

3.2. Duty to Reapply

If the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date of this
permit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit.

3.3. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to
halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.

3.4. Duty to Mitigate

The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge or sludge use or
disposal in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health
or the environment.

3.5. Proper Operation and Maintenance

The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and
control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance
with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory
controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up
or auxiliary facilities or similar systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is
necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.

3.6. Permit Actions

This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request by the
permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of
planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition.

3.7. Property Rights
This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege.
3.8. Duty to Provide Information

The permittee shall furnish to the Director, within a reasonable time, any information which the Director
may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this
permit or to determine compliance with this permit. The permittee shall also furnish to the Director upon
request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit.
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3.9. Inspection and Entry

The permittee shall allow the Director, or an authorized representative (including an authorized
contractor acting as a representative of the Administrator), upon presentation of credentials and other
documents as may be required by law, to:

(1) Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or conducted, or
where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;

(2) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of
this permit;

(3) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment),
practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and

(4) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance or as
otherwise authorized by the Clean Water Act, any substances or parameters at any location.

3.10. Monitoring and Records

(1) Samples and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring shall be representative of the
monitored activity.

(2) Except for records of monitoring information required by this permit related to the permittee's
sewage sludge use and disposal activities, which shall be retained for a period of at least five (5) years
(or longer as required by 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(10) [40 CFR 503]), the permittee shall retain records
of all monitoring information, including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip
chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this
permit, and records of all data used to complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least
three (3) years from the date of the sample, measurement, report or application. This period may be
extended by request of the Director at any time.

(3) Records of monitoring information shall include:

a) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

b) The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;
c) The date(s) analyses were performed;

d) The individual(s) who performed the analyses;

e) The analytical techniques or methods used; and

f) The results of such analyses.

(4) Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 401 KAR 5:065, Section
2(8) [40 CFR 136] unless another method is required under 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(9) or (10) [40
CFR subchapters N or O].

(5) KRS 224.99-010 provides that any person who knowingly violates KRS 224.70-110 or other
enumerated statutes, or who knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method
required to be maintained under this permit shall be guilty of a Class D felony and, upon conviction,
shall be punished by a fine of not more than $25,000, or by imprisonment for not less than one (1)
year and not more than five (5) years, or by both fine and imprisonment for each separate violation.
Each day upon which a violation occurs shall constitute a separate violation.

3.11. Signatory Requirement

(1) All applications, reports, or information submitted to the Director shall be signed and certified
pursuant to 401 KAR 5:060, Section 4 [40 CFR 122.22].
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(2) KRS 224.99-010 provides that any person who knowingly provides false information in any document
filed or required to be maintained under KRS Chapter 224 shall be guilty of a Class D felony and upon
conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000),
or by imprisonment, or by fine and imprisonment, for each separate violation. Each day upon which
a violation occurs shall constitute a separate violation

3.12. Reporting Requirements

3.12.1. Planned Changes

The permittee shall give notice to the Director as soon as possible of any planned physical alterations or
additions to the permitted facility. Notice is required only when:

(1) The alteration or addition to a permitted facility may meet one (1) of the criteria for determining
whether a facility is a new source in KRS 224.16-050 [40 CFR 122.29(b)]; or

(2) The alteration or addition could significantly change the nature or increase the quantity of pollutants
discharged. This notification applies to pollutants which are subject neither to effluent limitations in
the permit, nor to notification requirements under KRS 224.16-050 [40 CFR 122.42(a)(1)].

(3) The alteration or addition results in a significant change in the permittee's sludge use or disposal
practices, and such alteration, addition, or change may justify the application of permit conditions
that are different from or absent in the existing permit, including notification of additional use or
disposal sites not reported during the permit application process or not reported pursuant to an
approved land application plan.

3.12.2. Anticipated Noncompliance

The permittee shall give advance notice to the Director of any planned changes in the permitted facility
or activity which may result in noncompliance with permit requirements.

3.12.3. Transfers

This permit is not transferable to any person except after notice to the Director. The Director may require
modification or revocation and reissuance of the permit to change the name of the permittee and
incorporate such other requirements as may be necessary under KRS 224 [CWA; see 40 CFR 122.61; in
some cases, modification or revocation and reissuance is mandatory].

3.12.4. Monitoring Reports

Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified elsewhere in this permit.

(1) Monitoring results must be reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) or forms provided or
specified by the Director for reporting results of monitoring of sludge use or disposal practices.

(2) If the permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the permit using test
procedures approved under 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(8) [40 CFR 136], or another method required
for an industry-specific waste stream under 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(9) or (10) [40 CFR subchapters
N or O], the results of such monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data
submitted in the DMR or sludge reporting form specified by the Director.

(3) Calculations for all limitations which require averaging of measurements shall utilize an arithmetic mean
unless otherwise specified by the Director in the permit.
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3.12.5. Compliance Schedules

Reports of compliance or noncompliance with, or any progress reports on, interim and final requirements
contained in any compliance schedule of this permit shall be submitted no later than fourteen (14) days
following each schedule date.

3.12.6. Twenty-Four-Hour Reporting

1) The permittee shall report any noncompliance which may endanger health or the environment to the
DOW Regional Office. Any information shall be provided orally within twenty-four (24) hours from the
time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances. A written submission shall also be provided
within five (5) days of the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances. The written
submission shall contain a description of the noncompliance and its cause; the period of noncompliance,
including exact dates and times, and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time it
is expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of
the noncompliance.

2) The following shall be included as information which must be reported within twenty-four (24) hours
under this paragraph:

a) Any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit [40 CFR 122.41 (g)].

b) Any upset which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit.

c) Violation of a maximum daily discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed by the Director
in the permit to be reported within twenty-four (24) hours.

3) The Director may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis under 40 CFR 122.41 (l), if the oral
report has been received within twenty-four (24) hours.

4) The permittee is assigned to the Department for Environmental Protection’s Madisonville Regional
Field Office.

a. Reporting shall be as required in paragraphs 1 through 3 of this subsection except that, if a spill or
release of pollutants or contaminants, bypass, upset, or other event of non-compliance occurs that
may present an imminent or substantial danger to the environment or the public health or welfare,
the permittee shall immediately notify the regional field office by calling the Madisonville Regional
Field Office at (270) 824-7529.

b. If areport required by this subsection is made during other than normal business hours, it shall be
made through the twenty-four (24) hour environmental emergency telephone number at (800)
928-2380.

c. Thereporting requirements of this subsection does not relieve the permittee of reporting required
under other laws, regulations, programs, or emergency response plans.

3.12.7. Other Noncompliance

The permittee shall report all instances of noncompliance not reported under Sections 3.12.1, 3.12.4,
3.12.5 and 3.12.6, at the time monitoring reports are submitted. The reports shall contain the information
listed in Section 3.12.6.

3.12.8. Other Information

Where the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit application or
submitted incorrect information in a permit application or in any report to the Director, it shall promptly
submit such facts or information.
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3.13. Bypass
3.13.1. Definitions
(1) Bypass means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility.

(2) Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment
facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural
resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property
damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays in production.

3.13.2. Bypass Not Exceeding Limitations

The permittee may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause effluent limitations to be exceeded,
but only if it also is for essential maintenance to assure efficient operation. These bypasses are not subject
to the provisions of Section 3.13.3 and 3.13.4.

3.13.3. Notice

(1) Anticipated bypass. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notice, if
possible at least ten (10) days before the date of the bypass.

(2) Unanticipated bypass. The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated bypass as required in
Section 3.12.6.

3.13.4. Prohibition of Bypass

(1) Bypass is prohibited, and the Director may take enforcement action against a permittee for bypass,
unless:

a) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage;

b) There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities,
retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime.
This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the
exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal
periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and

c) The permittee submitted notices as required under Section 3.13.3.

(2) The Director may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if the Director
determines that it will meet the three (3) conditions listed above in Section 3.13.4

3.14. Upset
3.14.1. Definition

Upset means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with
technology-based permit effluent limitations because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the
permittee. An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error,
improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance,
or careless or improper operation.

3.14.2. Effect of an Upset

An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with such technology-
based permit effluent limitations if the requirements of Section 3.14.3 are met. No determination made
during administrative review of claims that noncompliance was caused by upset, and before an action for
noncompliance, is final administrative action subject to judicial review.
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3.14.3. Conditions Necessary for a Demonstration of Upset

A permittee who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly
signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:

(1) An upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset;
(2) The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated; and

(3) The permittee submitted notice of the upset as required in Section 3.12.6; and
(4) The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under Section 3.4.
3.14.4. Burden of Proof

In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the
burden of proof.
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SECTION 4

ADDITIONAL CATEGORICAL CONDITIONS
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4, Additional Categorical Conditions

The following conditions apply to all POTWs. All POTWs must provide adequate notice to the Director of
the following:

(1) Any new introduction of pollutants into the POTW from an indirect discharger which would be subject
to section 301 or 306 of CWA if it were directly discharging those pollutants; and

(2) Any substantial change in the volume or character of pollutants being introduced into that POTW by a
source introducing pollutants into the POTW at the time of issuance of the permit.

(3) For purposes of this paragraph, adequate notice shall include information on (i) the quality and
quantity of effluent introduced into the POTW, and (ii) any anticipated impact of the change on the
quantity or quality of effluent to be discharged from the POTW.
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SECTION 5

WET TESTING REQUIREMENTS
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5. WET TESTING REQUIREMENTS

At the frequency specified in the Effluent and Monitoring Requirements section(s) of this permit, the
permittee shall initiate or continue the series of tests described below to evaluate wastewater toxicity of
the discharge from Outfall(s) 001 and 001A.

5.1. Sampling Requirements

Tests shall be conducted on a minimum of three (3) 24-hour composite samples collected at a frequency of
one (1) 24-hour composite every other day. For example, the first sample would be used for test initiation
on day 1 and for test solution renewal on day 2. The second sample would be used for test solution renewal
on days 3 and 4. The third sample would be used for test solution renewal on days 5, 6, and 7. Each 24-hour
composite shall be collected using a refrigerated automatic sampler. Each 24-hour composite sample shall
consist of not less than forty-eight (48) discrete aliquots of effluent. Aliquots shall be of equal volume and
time-proportional unless effluent flow is expected to vary by more than 10% from one hour to another or
by 50% over the 24-hour collection period (as predicted from historical trends, significant rainfall events,
etc.). With anticipated effluent flow variation of greater than 10% per hour or 50% overall, the frequency,
and volume of each aliquot shall be flow-proportional. The lapsed time from collection of the last aliquot of
the composite and its first use for test initiation or for test solution renewal shall not exceed 36 hours.

Samples shall be iced and maintained at not greater than 6 °C during collection, storage, transport and until
used in the test by the laboratory.

5.2. Test Requirements

The chronic WET test consists of 1 short-term static-renewal water flea (Ceriodaphnia dubia) life-cycle test
and 1 short-term static-renewal fathead minnow (Pimephales promelas) growth test on 100% effluent (1.00
TUc) at the frequency specified. The test shall begin within 36 hours of the collection of the day 1 sample.
The test shall be renewed daily using samples collected on days 1, 3; and 5 in accordance with test method
specified in the Test Methods Section below.

5.3. Serial Dilutions

Effluent concentrations for the tests must include the percent effluent required by the permit and at least
four additional effluent concentrations.

For a required percent effluent of 100%, test concentrations shall be 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%.

For a required percent effluent less than 100% but greater than or equal to 75%, the test concentrations
shall include the required percent effluent, two (2) concentrations below that are based on a 0.5 dilution
factor, and two (2) concentrations above: one (1) at mid-point between 100% and the required percent
effluent, and one (1) at 100% effluent.

For arequired percent effluent less than 75%, test concentrations shall include the required percent effluent,
two (2) concentrations below on a 0.5 dilution factor, and two (2) concentrations above the required percent
effluent based on a 0.5 dilution factor, if possible; otherwise, one (1) at mid-point between 100% and the
required percent effluent, and one (1) at 100% effluent.

Selection of different effluent concentrations must be approved by DOW prior to testing. Controls shall be
conducted concurrently with effluent testing using synthetic water.

5.4. Controls

Control tests shall be conducted concurrent with effluent testing using synthetic water. The analysis will be
deemed reasonable and good only if the minimum control requirements are met.
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Any test that does not meet the control acceptability criteria shall be repeated as soon as practicable within
the monitoring period.

Within 30 days prior to initiating an effluent toxicity test, a reference toxicant test must be completed for
the method used; alternatively, the reference toxicant test may be run concurrent with the effluent
toxicity test.

For the Ceriodaphnia test: at least 80% survival of all control organisms and an average of fifteen (15) or
more young per surviving female in the control solutions; and 60% of surviving control females must produce
three broods.

For the fathead minnow test: at least 80% survival in controls and the average dry weight per surviving
organism in control chambers equals or exceeds 0.25 mg.

5.5. Test Methods

All test organisms, procedures and quality assurance criteria used shall be in accordance with Short-term
Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Freshwater Organisms (4%
Edition), EPA-821-R-02-013, the most recent edition of this publication, or as approved in advance by DOW.

5.6. Reduction to Single Species Testing

After at least six (6) consecutive passing toxicity tests using both, the water flea and the fathead minnow, a
request for testing with only the most sensitive species may be submitted to DOW. Upon approval, the most
sensitive species may be considered as representative and all subsequent compliance tests may be
conducted using only that species unless directed at any time by DOW to change or revert to both.

5.7. Reporting Requirements

Results of all toxicity tests conducted with any species shall be reported according to the most recent format
provided by DOW (See the Section for Submission of DMRs of this permit). Notification of failed test shall be
made to DOW within five days of test completion. Test reports shall be submitted to DOW within thirty (30)
days of completion. A control chart including the most recent reference toxicant test endpoints for the
effluent test method (minimum of 5, up to 20 if available) shall be part of the report.

5.8. Persistence Evaluation for Test Failure

If noncompliance occurs in an initial test, the permittee shall repeat the test using new samples. Results of
this second round of testing will be used to evaluate the persistence of the toxic event and the possible need
for a Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE). The repeat sampling shall commence as soon as practicable. The
repeat test shall not be used as a substitution for any test. Failing either species in a two-species test requires
retesting for persistence using both species.

Noncompliance with the toxicity limit is demonstrated if the ICys (inhibition concentration) for reproduction
or growth is less than 100 % effluent. If noncompliance occurs in an initial test, the permittee must repeat
the test using a new set of three (3) composite samples. Sampling must be initiated within fifteen (15) days
of completing the failed test. The second round of testing shall include both species unless approved for only
the most sensitive species by DOW.

5.9. Accelerated Testing

If the second round of testing also demonstrates noncompliance, the permittee will be required to perform
accelerated testing as specified in the following paragraphs.

Complete four (4) additional rounds of testing to evaluate the frequency and degree of toxicity within
sixty (60) days of completing the second failed round of testing. Results of the initial and second rounds
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of testing specified above plus the four (4) additional rounds of testing will be used in deciding if a TRE
shall be required.

If results from any two (2) of six (6) rounds of testing show a significant noncompliance with the Toxicity
limit, i.e., 21.2 times the TU, or results from any four of the six tests show toxicity as defined above, a TRE
will be required.

The permittee shall provide written notification to DOW within five (5) days of completing the accelerated
testing, stating that: (1) toxicity persisted and that a TRE will be initiated; or (2) that toxicity did not persist
and normal testing will resume.

Should toxicity prove not to be persistent during the accelerated testing period but reoccur within twelve
(12) months of the initial failure at a level > 1.2 times the TU, then a TRE shall be required.

5.10. WETTRE

Having determined that a TRE is required, the permittee shall initiate and/or continue at least monthly
testing with both species until such time as a specific TRE plan is approved by DOW. A TRE plan shall be
developed by the permittee and submitted to DOW within thirty (30) days of determining a TRE is required.
The plan shall be developed in accordance with the most recent Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
DOW guidance. Questions regarding this process may be submitted to DOW.

The TRE plan shall include Toxic Identification Evaluation (TIE) procedures, treatability studies, and
evaluations of: chemical usage including changes in types, handling and suppliers; operational and process
procedures; housekeeping and maintenance activities; and raw materials. The TRE plan will establish an
implementation schedule to begin immediately upon approval by DOW, to have duration of at least six (6)
months, and not to exceed twenty-four (24) months. The implementation schedule shall include quarterly
progress reports being submitted to DOW, due the last day of the month following each calendar quarter.

Upon completion of the TRE, the permittee shall submit a final report detailing the findings of the TRE and
actions taken or to be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of toxicity. This final report shall include: the
toxicant(s), if any are identified; treatment options; operational changes; and the proposed resolutions
including an implementation schedule not to exceed one-hundred-eighty (180) days.

Should the permittee determine the toxicant(s) and/or a workable treatment prior to the planned
conclusion of the TRE, the permittee will notify DOW within five (5) days of making that determination and
take appropriate actions to implement the solution within one-hundred-eighty (180) days of that
notification.
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SECTION 6

OTHER CONDITIONS
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6. OTHER CONDITIONS
6.1. Schedule of Compliance

The permittee shall attain compliance with all requirements of this permit on the effective date of this
permit unless otherwise stated below:

Permittee shall meet conditions of the permit addressing the interim expanded plant within the shortest
time period feasible but shall not exceed ninety (90) days after the start-up of the plant.

6.2. Other Permits

This permit has been issued under the provisions of KRS Chapter 224 and regulations promulgated
pursuant thereto. Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from the responsibility of
obtaining any other permits or licenses required by this Cabinet and other state, federal, and local
agencies.

6.3. Continuation of Expiring Permit

This permit shall be continued in effect and enforceable after the expiration date of the permit provided
the permittee submits a timely and complete application in accordance with 401 KAR 5:060, Section 2(4).

6.4. Antidegradation

For those discharges subject to the provisions of 401 KAR 10:030, Section 1(3)(b)5, the permittee shall
install, operate, and maintain wastewater treatment facilities consistent with those identified in the
approved regional facility plan.

6.5. Reopener Clause

This permit shall be modified, or alternatively revoked and reissued, to comply with any applicable
effluent standard or limitation issued or approved in accordance with 401 KAR 5:050 through 5:080, if the
effluent standard or limitation so issued or approved:

(1) Contains different conditions or is otherwise more stringent than any effluent limitation in
the permit; or
(2) Controls any pollutant not limited in the permit.

The permit as modified or reissued under this paragraph shall also contain any other requirements of KRS
Chapter 224 when applicable.

6.6. Sludge Disposal

The disposal or final use of sewage sludge generated during the treatment of domestic sewage by a POTW
shall be disposed of in accordance with state and federal requirements [401 KAR Chapter 45 and 40 CFR
503].

6.7. Certified Operators

The wastewater treatment plant shall be under the primary responsibility of Class Il Wastewater Treatment
Plant Certified Operators or higher.

The collection system shall be under the primary responsibility of Class Il Collection System Certified
Operators or higher.
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6.8. Outfall Signage

This KPDES permit establishes monitoring points, effluent limitations, and other conditions to address
discharges from the permitted facility. To better document and clarify these locations the permittee shall
place and maintain a permanent marker at each of the monitoring locations. Each marker shall include:

1) The KPDES permit number; and
2) The KPDES Outfall No. as identified on the issued permit.
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SECTION 7

MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
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7. MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
7.1. KPDES Outfalls

Discharge samples and measurements shall be collected at the compliance point for each KPDES Outfall
identified in this permit. Each sample shall be representative of the volume and nature of the monitored
discharge.

7.2. Monthly Operating Reports (MORs)

In addition to the monitoring of effluent as specified by the permit, the permittee shall conduct process
control monitoring on a daily basis. Process control monitoring is that monitoring performed by the
operators of the wastewater treatment plant to determine if the wastewater system is operating at its
optimum efficiency. This monitoring includes but is not limited to influent and effluent quality and
guantity monitoring, chemical usage, sludge monitoring including volume produced, wasted, and
disposed, and monitoring of internal units such as aeration basins and oxidation ditches.

The DOW recommends recording the data using the Microsoft EXCEL-based Municipal Monthly Operating
Report (MOR) workbook named “Municipal WWTP MORs Master “that is available on the Department for
Environmental Protection’s Forms webpage at:

https://eec.ky.gov/Environmental-Protection/resources/Pages/Forms-Library.aspx.

Alternatively, the permittee may choose to use their own electronic or paper MOR workbook, as long as
it includes the information required by the above form and/or is approved by the Division’s Regional Field
Office Supervisor.

The updated workbook shall be maintained on-site and made available upon request by Cabinet
personnel.

7.3. Sufficiently Sensitive Analytical Methods

Analytical methods utilized to demonstrate compliance with the effluent limitations established in this
permit, shall be sufficiently sensitive to measure pollutant levels using the Minimum Reporting Level
(MRL) which is at or below the required effluent limit. In the instance where an EPA-approved method
does not exist that has a MRL at or below the established effluent limitation, the permittee shall use the
EPA-approved method with a demonstrated MRL that is nearest to the established effluent limit. It is the
responsibility of the permittee to demonstrate compliance with permit parameter limitations by
utilization of sufficiently sensitive analytical methods.

MRL is defined as: The lowest concentration of an analyte (i.e., permit parameter) that can be reliably
guantified that is greater than the method detection limit, of sufficient accuracy and precision to meet
the intended purpose, and meeting acceptable quality control criteria for the analyte at this
concentration. This defined concentration can be no lower than the concentration of the lowest
calibration standard for that analyte or, in non-calibrated methods, the limitations defined by the
equipment and volumes utilized.

Sufficiently Sensitive Method is defined by EPA in the Federal Register notice as:

1) The method minimum level (Kentucky defined as minimum reporting level — MRL) is at or below
the level of the applicable water quality criterion or permit limitation for the measured pollutant
or pollutant parameter;

2) Inthe case of permit applications, the method minimum level (MRL) is above the applicable water
quality criterion, but the amount of the pollutant or pollutant parameter in a facility's discharge
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is high enough that the method detects and quantifies the level of the pollutant or pollutant
parameter in the discharge; or
3) The method has the lowest minimum level (MRL) of the EPA-approved analytical methods.

7.4. Certified Laboratory Requirements

All laboratory analyses and tests required to demonstrate compliance with the conditions of this permit
shall be performed by a laboratory holding the appropriate general or field-only certification issued by
the Cabinet pursuant to 401 KAR 5:320.

7.5. Submission of DMRs

The completed DMR for each monitoring period must be entered into the DOW approved electronic
system no later than midnight on the 28% day of the month following the monitoring period for which
monitoring results were obtained.

For more information regarding electronic submittal of DMRs, please visit the Division’s website at:
https://eec.ky.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water/SubmitReport/Pages/NetDMR.aspx or contact the
DMR Coordinator at (502) 564-3410.
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